
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 

AGENDA 

July 28, 2016 

7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order

2. Determination of a Quorum

3. Purpose of Architectural Review Board; Statement of Qualifications of Architectural Review Board

4. Approval of Minutes – June 26, 2016

5. Old Business

A. Certificate of Appropriateness 16-10. Replace copper roof with metal roof at 329 Falmouth
St, Kristin Stobo, Owner; Michael Dawson, Contractor.

6. Work Session

7. Adjourn



1 
 

DRAFT – MINUTES  
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW BOARD 

TOWN OF WARRENTON 
June 23, 2016 

7:00 P.M. 
The regular meeting of the Town of Warrenton Architectural Review Board (ARB) convened on 
June 23, 2016 at 7:00 PM in the Municipal Building. 

Dr. Melissa Wiedenfeld, Chair, called the meeting to order and a quorum was determined. The 
following members were present: Mr. James Tucker, Vice-Chair, Mr. Steve Wojcik and Mr. Jerry 
Wood Town Council Ex-Officio member. Ms. Kelly Machen, Community Development Planner 
was present and represented staff. Mr. Carter Nevill and Dr. Carole Hertz were absent. 

Purpose Statement 

Dr. Wiedenfeld stated the Purpose of the Architectural Review Board; Statement of Qualifications of 
Architectural Review Board to be: The Board makes a decision on applications in order to preserve 
the character of the Historic District of the Town of Warrenton on behalf of the Town of Warrenton. 
Decisions of the Board are based upon the Historic Guidelines and a decision for each application is 
made based upon its own merits. Those decisions do not constitute precedence for any future 
decisions. The guidelines provide the framework for consistent decision making by elaborating upon 
the Zoning Ordinances goal to identify, protect and preserve the buildings within the Historic 
District boundaries. 

Approval of Minutes 

Dr. Wiedenfeld said the minutes from May 23, 2016 were for approval. She requested that the 
minutes of May 23, 2016 reflect the addition of the following:  

• Dr. Wiedenfeld noted that COAP 2016-12 was counter to the guidelines.  
• Dr. Wiedenfeld noted that COAP 2016-21 did not meet the requirement of the guidelines. 

The applicant did not provide pictures of proposed windows or a list of windows to be 
replaced as requested.  

Mr. Wojcik made a motion to approve the minutes of May 23, 2016 with the amendments as noted.  

Mr. Tucker seconded the motion and the motion passed with all voting in favor.  

 



2 
 

New Business 

• Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-26 Proposed exterior building colors at 41 Beckham 
Street; James Hricko, Architect  

James Hricko, Architect approached the podium and addressed the board. He presented samples of 
paint chips for proposed use on the exterior of the building at 41 Beckham Street.  

Mr. Tucker noted that the board was looking at colors now, because the application was presented to 
the board after the required submission date. As a condition of receiving the previous application, 
Mr. Tucker made a motion that colors be brought for review before the ARB. At a previous ARB 
meeting, Mr. Carter questioned the board’s authority to review colors. Mr. Tucker said the authority 
for the ARB to review paint colors is in Zoning Ordinance Article 3-5.3.5.3 – material to be 
submitted for review includes colors. The application for a Certificate of Appropriateness clearly 
states that for buildings, paint and stain colors shall be submitted.  

Mr. Hricko gave comments on what they were trying to accomplish for the structure with the paint 
colors selected. Several board members stated the colors were appropriate. 

Mr. Wojcik made a motion to approve the application for Certificate of Appropriateness 2016-26 
for the proposed building colors at 41 Beckham as presented with the following conditions:  

•  The colors Dorian gray, repose gray and black fox are used for the building. 
•  The colors for the sails will be orange, red and green as presented. 
•  If these conditions are not met, the applicant will need to appear again before the board.  

Mr. Tucker seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously (3-0).  

Old Business  

Dr. Wiedenfeld stated under old business, Certificate of Appropriateness 16-10, replace copper 
roof with metal roof at 329 Falmouth has once again been postponed at the request of the applicant.  

Dr. Wiedenfeld added that for the garage door reviewed last month, the applicant was unable to get 
the door that was discussed and she reverted to the original, minus the metal decorations. The 
change was put this through under administrative approval. 

Dr. Wiedenfeld closed the regular session at 7:12 p.m. and the board went into Work Session. 

Work Session  

Mr. Wojcik stated he had a concern about one of the applications that had been approved at a 
previous meeting. He said that the applicant did not own the property at the time of the ARB 
meeting, that they were to close the next day, and it was his understanding that an application is not 
to be presented to the board unless it is by the owner. Also, at the time, it was brought up to the ARB 
that the windows had lead on the inside and there was a safety concern for the children in the home. 
He went on to say that there are means to mitigate lead on windows without replacement, and it 
would be a tragedy to lose the original windows. He said he had never contacted an applicant after a 
meeting, but he did call the new owner and recommended that he contract a lead abatement 



3 
 

company that had no financial interest in the subsequent work. He added that every building 
constructed before 1970 probably has lead.  

Mr. Wojcik said in the rush to do our motion, we skipped some of the things that had been requested 
for the owner to accomplish, such as maintain the windows in a safe place so that a future owner 
could reinstall them if they desired. In short, he said, we should take our time with our motions to 
make sure that we are including all the conditions, in other words, vet things more carefully.  

Mr. Tucker said he was not present at May’s meeting but was surprised that some of the applications 
had been approved because they appear to be contrary to the guidelines. He noted from the 
guidelines, rehabilitation as a treatment of historic properties, paragraph 3 – each property shall be 
recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Changes that create a false sense of 
historical development such as adding conjectural features or architectural elements from other 
buildings shall not be undertaken. He noted a concern that the Architectural Review Board may not 
be looking carefully at the guidelines and is not incorporating the guidelines in the discussions and 
decisions at the meetings.  

There was discussion regarding how to make sure the applicant is the owner of the property that they 
are making an application for, and if there was any recourse after the fact, if knowledge came to 
light that the applicant was not the owner. Dr. Wiedenfeld suggested making that the first question 
asked of the applicant. There was also discussion regarding the Certificate of Appropriateness 
application form. She said if we get an application and we do not like the signature or we do not like 
something on the application, we can table it and ask for clarification. We should table things more 
often, she added.  

Ms. Machen, Community Development Planner, informed the board that an appeal was received for 
81B Main Street, the projecting sign at Hutcheson Agency, which will go before Town Council in 
July.  

Ms. Machen also presented Dr. Wiedenfeld with a list of administrative approvals for the past 
month.  

Mr. Tucker noted a concern about the canvas banner on the back of the building on Fourth Street. He 
said when he first questioned it, he was not sure if it had been up for sixty days or not, but that is has 
been up that long at this point.  

Ms. Machen explained that the responsible party had been notified.  

Mr. Tucker made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  

Mr. Wojcik seconded the motion and the motion passed with all in favor.  

The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 p.m.  











UNA-CLAD™ METAL PANEL
COLOR SELECTION GUIDE

Colors shown are as close to actual painted steel as allowed by the printing process. Contact your local sales rep for actual metal samples. 

Metal Systems Color Availability

Stone White Bone White Almond Sandstone

Slate Gray Cityscape Charcoal Gray Sierra Tan

Medium Bronze Dark Bronze Extra Dark Bronze Matte Black

Brandywine Colonial Red Terra Cotta Mansard Brown

Regal Red Award Blue Sky Blue Electric Blue

Regal Blue Teal Patina Green Dark Ivy

Sherwood Green Hartford Green Hemlock Green Tropical Patina

Silver Metallic Classic Copper Champagne Metallic



 

 

FIRESTONE BUILDING PRODUCTS 
250 WEST 96TH ST., INDIANAPOLIS, IN 46260   
CORPORATE OFFICE: (800) 428-4442 • (317) 575-7000 

For more information, contact your local 
Sales Rep or visit FIRESTONEBPCO.COM.

/FirestoneBuildingProducts @FirestoneBPCo

Item #MP1185   1/16

Color Selection Guide

New 35-Year Warranty 
available for all finishes

PVDF FINISH R E SRI
STEEL1 STEEL2 ALUMINUM

26 24 22 24 .032 .040 .050 .063

Almond ◊ 0.57 0.86 67 u u u u u u

Bone White ◊ 0.72 0.84 87 u u u u u u u u

Brandywine  0.25 0.85 23 u u u u u

Charcoal Gray ◊ 0.29 0.84 28 u u u u u u

Cityscape ◊ 0.35 0.85 37 u u u u u u

Colonial Red ◊ 0.31 0.84 31 u u u u u u u

Dark Bronze  0.26 0.84 24 u u u u u u u u

Dark Ivy   0.25 0.83 22 u u u u u

Extra Dark Bronze 0.06 0.87 0 u u u u u

Hartford Green 0.10 0.82 2 u u u u u u u

Hemlock Green ◊ 0.32 0.86 33 u u u u

Mansard Brown ◊ 0.30 0.85 30 u u u u u u u

Matte Black ◊ 0.25 0.86 24 u u u u u u u

Medium Bronze ◊ 0.30 0.87 31 u u u u u u u u

Patina Green  ◊ 0.26 0.86 25 u u u u

Regal Blue 0.16 0.86 12 u u u u u

Regal Red ◊ 0.42 0.84 46 u u u u u u

Sandstone ◊ 0.51 0.85 58 u u u u u u u u

Sherwood Green ◊ 0.27 0.85 26 u u u u u u u

Sierra Tan  0.35 0.86 37 u u u u u u u u

Sky Blue ◊ 0.29 0.85 29 u u

Slate Gray◊ 0.36 0.86 38 u u u u u u u

Stone White ◊ 0.57 0.86 67 u u u u u u u u

Teal 0.13 0.85 7 u u u

Terra Cotta ◊ 0.34 0.87 36 u u u u u u

Tropical Patina  0.28 0.85 27 u u

Award Blue  0.15 0.84 9 u u

Electric Blue  0.20 0.84 16 u u

Champagne Metallic  0.37 0.83 38 u u u

Classic Copper ◊ 0.42 0.86 46 u u

Silver Metallic ◊ 0.59 0.77 67 u u u u u u

LEGEND

Steel Types:

1 G-90 Galvanized Steel 
2 AZ-50 Galvalume® Steel 

Cool Roofing Information: 
R– Initial Solar Reflectance 
E– Initial Emissivity 
SRI–Solar Reflective Index

 – Energy Star® qualified products

◊ – CRRC -listed finish

	– Premium Color

NOTES

• All paint finishes are high quality   
PVDF (Kynar 500® / Hylar 5000®)   
colors.

• Custom colors are available.

•  Copper and zinc available; stainless 
steel and mill finish aluminum available 
in limited stock.

• Protective film must be removed   
immediately after installation.

Galvalume® is a registered trademark of 
BIEC International, Inc.

Kynar 500® is a registered trademark of 
Arkema, Inc.

Hylar 5000® s a registered trademark of 
Solvay Solexis, Inc.

Contact your local sales representative for specific stocking information. Not all colors and gauges are stocked in all locations.
Due to product improvements, changes and other factors, we reserve the right to change or delete information herein without prior notice.
Please refer to our online document for the most up-to-date information.





From: biggamehunter1271
To: Kelly Machen
Subject: Kristin roof
Date: Thursday, July 21, 2016 11:11:13 AM
Attachments: 20160721_102330_resized_3.jpg

This is a picture of hail damage and where 2 adjoining roofs meet is rusted out has small pin
holes in metal and is leaking in house a little probably insulation is soaking up most as the
holes are very small but will continue to get worst as time goes by in my opinion it needs to be
addressed as soon as possible before insulation and drywall becomes damaged and becomes a
very costly repair which homeowner will become responsible for her repairs inside of home

Happy Connecting. Sent from my Sprint Samsung Galaxy S® 5

mailto:biggamehunter1271@yahoo.com
mailto:kmachen@warrentonva.gov


	2016-07-21 ARB Agenda
	5. Old Business
	A. Certificate of Appropriateness 16-10. Replace copper roof with metal roof at 329 Falmouth St, Kristin Stobo, Owner; Michael Dawson, Contractor.

	2016-6- 23 ARB draft Minutes
	COAP2016-10 Application Combined
	ARB Application COAP 2016-10
	Pic From Inside Window
	Pic Front of House
	Pic Rear of House
	metal-color-selection-chart-item-1185-pdf-2 (1)

	20160721_102330_resized_3
	Kristin roof

